M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 14, 2004
6: 01 PM

TAPES

SFC-04 # 81, Side A
SFC 04 # 81, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Lyda Green convened the neeting at approxinmately 6:01 PM
PRESENT

Senator Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W1 ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or Donny d son

Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Al so Attending: Testifiers are listed in the order they testified
in the body of the m nutes.

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

HB 375- APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS
HB 377- APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

The Committee heard public testinony from the Legislative
Information O fices located in Petersburg, Ketchikan. Wangell
Sitka, Cordova, Honer, Kodiak and Kenai, and in person in Juneau.
The bills were held in Conmttee.

#HB375
#HB377

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 375(FIN) am

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and | oan
program expenses of state governnent, for certain prograns,
and to capitalize funds; and providing for an effective date."

SFC- 03 (1) 04/ 14/ 04



And

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 377(FIN)

"An Act nmaking appropriations for the operating and capital
expenses of the state's integrated conprehensive nental health
program and providing for an effective date."

This was the fourth hearing for these bills in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

JEAN MACK, representing the City of Petersburg, testified via
tel econference from Petersburg in opposition of using a statew de
sales tax or a tourismtax to balance the State budget. She spoke
of the reliance of the Gty on its local sales tax and bed tax. She
stated that if the Legislature decided to not remt an extra one
percent of the collected sales tax under the proposed | egislation,
SB 366, the nmnunicipalities would be in a difficult financial
situation. She preferred a statew de incone tax.

DI ANE | VY-DAHLIN, Coordinator, Youth Court, testified via
tel econference from Wangell to urge the Conmttee support the
program statew de. She detailed the benefits of the inception of
this programin Wangell, including reduced of fenses by juvenil es.
She remarked that the cost of incarceration of juveniles is
significantly higher than the cost to operate the youth court
program She requested the Senate fund the program in the sane
anount approved by the House of Representatives.

VALERY MCCANDLESS, WMayor, Gty of Wangell, testified via
tel econference from Wangell about the "trenendous difference" the
youth court has made in that community. She stated this program
pronotes "restorative justice". She also expressed interest in
education funding, funding for public enployees and teachers
retirement systens, proposed changes to the permanent fund and the
proposed statew de sales tax. She stated that the current |evel of
the local sales and property taxes is inadequate to fund the
communi ty's needs, requiring the use of savings. She al so supported
funding for harbors. She reconmended consideration of an incone
t ax.

ALEJANDRO CHAVARRI A, 16 year old, representing the Ketchi kan Youth
Court, testified via teleconference from Ketchikan about the
program which allows defendants representation by an attorney and
to be judged by their peers. He stated the youth court costs 50
percent less to operate than the traditional court system |owers
the burden on the district court, and has a low recidivismrate for

SFC- 03 (2) 04/ 14/ 04



t hose appearing in the court.

GRETCHEN KLEI' N, Coordi nator, Ketchikan Youth Court, testified via
tel econference from Ketchikan that the youth court has been in
operation in Ketchikan for alnost five years. She reiterated the
information provided by M. Chavarria, including the 80 percent
success rate and positive inpact on participants. She stated that
with declining funding fromthe State, participants have relied on
i ncreasing fundraising activities. However, she pointed out that
because participants spend so much tinme in fund raising activities,
they are not available for the desired | evel of training.

PAT MJZZANA, Paralegal, Alaska Legal Services Corporation,
testified via teleconference from Ketchikan that the office in
Ketchi kan only operates part tinme, but handles a significant
wor kl oad during its hours of operation. She told of the |oss of
many jobs in the conmunity and subsequent demand for these services
by lowinconme and elderly residents. She asked that the Senate
mat ch the actions of the House of Representatives.

BECKY BOLLI NG President, Al aska Nurses Association, testified via
tel econference from Ketchi kan to request the Commttee fully fund
the public health nursing program She did not understand the
proposed funding reductions in rural comrunities, such as
Ket chi kan, that have limted services avail able. She understood the
intent that |local conmunities take on a | arger share of providing
these services, but she stressed that resources are limted and
this could not be acconplished. She told of the inportance of
provi ding health care services to those in need and stressed that
rather than receive care elsewhere, would go untreated. She
predi cted higher rates of teen pregnancy and sexually transmtted
di seases.

JEANNI E MONK, Juneau Community Charter School, testified in Juneau
to grants for charter schools for the Juneau school and ot her snal
charter schools. She enphasi zed the inportance of these grants for
the small charter schools to provide short-termrelief and all ow
the schools to secure other funding and to grow and becone nore
stabl e over tine.

AT EASE 6:20 PM/ 6:30 PM

CHRI STINE PATE, Civil Law Attorney, testified via tel econference
from Sitka in favor of funding $125,000 for the Alaska Legal
Servi ces Corporation. She enphasized the inportance of |egal
representation for | owincone people for housing, children, wages
and other matters. She spoke of the high percentage of her clients

SFC- 03 (3) 04/ 14/ 04



how have experienced donestic violence and need to ensure safety
for their children.

TIM LONER, Sitka Youth Court, testified via teleconference from
Sitka to request the Senate appropriate funds for the programin
t he sanme anount approved by the House of Representatives. He told
of the successful operation of a youth court in Sitka for four
years until 2003, when |ack of funding required closure of the
program He stated that the Sitka Youth Court had a zero recidivism
rate during operation of the program

JILL SIMPSON, Cordova Famly Resource Center, testified via
tel econference from Cordova to encourage continued support of the
Al aska Counsel on Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault. She stated
wi t hout adequate funding for the Counsel, agencies, such as the
Cordova center, would be unable to offer services to victins of
domestic violence and sexual assault. She al so noted the increase
burden on local |aw enforcenent if these services were not
avai |l abl e.

AT EASE 6:37 PM/ 6:41 PM

JUDE PATE testified via tel econference from Sitka that he serves on
the Al aska Legal Services Corporation board of directors and is a
practicing attorney. He listed his work history, including working
with the Ofice of Public Advocacy. Through his work, he remarked
on the great demand for |egal services by |ow incone Al askans. He
understood that representation is available for crimnal matters,
but not for civil nmatters.

AT EASE 6:43 PM/ 6:58 PM

CHRI STI NE ABRAHANSON, Fi r eweed Acadeny, testified Vi a
tel econference from Honer about this small charter school, which is
part of the Kenai Peninsula School District. She expounded on the
benefits of charter schools as advocates of the needs of children
and as fiscal efficient operations. She requested the Conmttee
retain adequate funding for education and charter schools. She
inforned that at the elenmentary |evel, students have parti ci pated
in nock trials in the youth court.

MARNA MCGONEGAL, Harborview Elenentary School Parent Teacher
Associ ation, testified in Juneau that she noved her famly from
Uah to receive better education wthout the threat of gang
activities and 35 students in each class. She told of the class
size of 18 students and significant parental involvenent at
Har borview. She infornmed that |ibrarian positions have been reduced

SFC- 03 (4) 04/ 14/ 04



as well as services for students who speak English as a second
| anguage. She requested increased funding for education to avoid
the situation she experienced in the State of Ut ah.

SHELAGH SANDS, Harborview Elenentary School Parent Teacher
Association, testified in Juneau that the reading scores of
students at the school have dropped and that funding is inadequate
for a reading teacher position. She also reported that the school
has no nusic teacher and other teaching positions have been
reduced.

TONY NEWVAN, Parent of charter school student, testified in Juneau
to thank Senator Dyson and rep wyrock for support of small charter
schools. He relayed his conversations with parents across the State
and found that the current statutes governing snmall charter schools
are i nadequate and nust be changed. He exanpl ed that parents nust
spend significant tinme in fundraising activities. He surmsed this
is discouraging to others in form ng new charter schools.

AT EASE 7:08 PM/ 7:10 PM

DEBORAH GERMANO testified via tel econference from Honmer to express
concern that proposed budget reductions would affect those |east
able to provide for thensel ves. She supported broad based taxes,
t he percent of market val ue nethod of nanagi ng the Pernmanent Fund.
She did not support a statewi de sales tax, as it would negatively
i npact | ocal comunities.

VWH TNEY CUSHI NG, President, Statewi de Youth Court of Al aska,
testified via teleconference from Honmer that participants in the
youth court represent the best of A askan youth. He stated that the
youth court benefits the State in that it is |less expensive to
operate than the regular court system He furthered that offenders
are less likely to appear in court again after conpletion of the
youth court program He stressed that the youth court programis
operated by volunteers, and that w thout State funding, would be
unabl e to conti nue.

RICHARD WARRINGTON, Brain Injury Awareness, testified via
tel econference from Kenai to encourage support of a fiscal plan
that woul d provi de services for di sadvantaged Al askans, i ncl uding
the nental health court, youth court, services for seriously
injured adults, and treating youth within the State rather than
sending themto facilities outside Al aska. He reported that Al aska
has the highest rate of brain injury and that the Al aska Menta
Heal th Board has undertaken efforts to provide treatnment within the
St at e.

SFC- 03 (5) 04/ 14/ 04



AT EASE 7:18 PM/ 7:28 PM

SFC 04 # 81, Side B 07:29 PM

D. SCOIT SM TH, Executive Director, Safe Harbor, testified via
t el econference from Kodi ak that the Governor's recomended budget
reductions of $200,000 would not allow the facility to operate and
would |eave the island of Kodiak wthout inpatient treatnent
servi ces for substance abuse. He di sputed charges that the Governor
has nmade that the facility is not utilized by Kodi ak residents, and
cited information to the contrary. He shared his contributions in
the years after receiving substance abuse treatnent. He warned of
t he consequences of closure of the facility, including increased
i nstances of donestic violence, honel essness and crimnal activity.

Co-Chair Green understood that the Legislature is wunable to
directly inmpact which facilities receive the grant funding. She
asked the occupancy rate of the facility.

M. Smth explained the four-bed facility, of which only two beds
receive State funding. He requested the legislators pressure the
Governor to provide funds to Safe Harbor.

WLTON NELSON, Safe Harbor, testified via teleconference from
Kodi ak about the high incidences of substance abuse in the
community and the benefits of the treatnent provided by the
pr ogram

DAVI D ELUSKA, JR , Resident of Akiak, testified via tel econference
from Kodi ak that Safe Harbor has benefited him and that he has
| ear ned nuch about hi nsel f.

JEANNI E | NGA, Safe Harbor, testified via tel econference from Kodi ak
that her significant other is a resident of Safe Harbor and the
treatment has nade a difference in his |life. She wanted others to
benefit fromthe services as well.

DEBBI E GROTHE, Resident of Soldotna, Brain Injury Awareness-
Traumatic Brain Injury, testified via teleconference from Kena

about her 18-year-old niece who received a severe brain injury as a
result of a car accident. She detailed the hospital treatnent and
i n-home care of Nicole and the high probability of inprovenent of
her health. However, she informed that Blue Cross insurance would
not cover the treatnent expenses of a facility in California where
she has been accepted as a patient. She requested information on

SFC- 03 (6) 04/ 14/ 04



ot her services that may be avail able to assist her niece.

TRAVIS  WOODALL, Enpl oyee  of Safe  Harbor, testified via
tel econference from Kodiak to request the Conmmttee use its
| everage to prevent the Governor fromelimnating funding for the
program

MONTE HAWYER, Director, Brother Francis Shelter testified via
t el econference from Kodi ak about the efforts of the organization to
prevent people from becom ng honeless. He stated that funding
mental health treatnment is norally, socially and fiscally "the
right thing to do". He infornmed that costs would becone higher in
the future if these services were not funded adequately in the
present.

SUSAN PCLLARD, Al aska Kids Count, testified in Juneau on behal f of
education. She remarked on the inportance of devel oping a fiscal
pl an that provides adequate funding for education. She supported
spending fromthe Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund, broad based
taxes and ot her proposals. However, she stated she was unwilling to
accept no action.

LYNN SHEPHERD testified in Juneau to request funding for libraries,
nmuseuns and archives. She noted that funding has been reduced for
these facilities for many years. She listed positions that nust be
filled, including a curator for the Shel don Jackson Museumin Sitka
and an el ectronic archivist in Anchorage.

Senat or Dyson understood that the climate control is deteriorating

sone records in the archive facility in Juneau and asked the
Wi tness' information on this matter.

Ms. Shepherd admtted she has heard runors of this problem She
shared that she has visited the facility and has seen the nmassive
anount of paperwork and therefore did not dispute that the runors
coul d be true.

AT EASE 7:50 PM/ 7:57 PM

Co- Chair Green thanked those who provided testinony.

The bills were HELD in Conm ttee.

#
Co- Chair WI ken announced the agenda for the next neeting.

ADJ CQURNIVENT

SFC- 03 (7) 04/ 14/ 04



Co- Chair Lyda G een adjourned the neeting at 07:59 PM

SFC- 03 (8) 04/ 14/ 04



